
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY    BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
JUNE 6, 2017                                                                         REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 

REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 

Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  May 16, 2017  CIOFFI  
                                                       

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 
 

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS –    A. Executive  – May 30, 2017  CIOFFI 
   B. Conservation & Public Affairs – May 30, 2017  CIOFFI 
   C. Finance – June 1, 2017  STUART                        
  

5. PUBLIC INPUT:  
Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public 
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than 
three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda.                                                            

  

6. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT – APRIL  BLOOMER 
 

7. ITEMS FOR ACTION 
      Public Hearing Items (A-C): 

A. 2017/2018 Groundwater Replenishment Assessments  KRAUSE 
 Whitewater River Subbasin 
 1). Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1161 Making Findings in Fact Pursuant to Section 15.4 
  of Desert Water Agency Law for the Whitewater River Subbasin Replenishment Assessment 
 

 2). Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1162 Levying a Replenishment Assessment for 
   Fiscal Year 2017/2018 for the Whitewater River Subbasin 
 

B. Mission Creek Subbasin 
 1). Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1163 Making Findings in Fact Pursuant to Section 15.4 
  of Desert Water Agency Law for the Mission Creek Subbasin Replenishment Assessment 

 

 2). Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1164 Levying a Replenishment Assessment for  
  Fiscal Year 2017/2018 for the Mission Creek Subbasin 
  

C. Garnet Hill Subbasin 
 1). Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1165 Making Findings in Fact Pursuant to Section 15.4 
  of Desert Water Agency Law for the Garnet Hill Subbasin Replenishment Assessment 
 

 2). Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1166 Levying a Replenishment Assessment for  
  Fiscal Year 2017/2018 for the Garnet Hill Subbasin 

 

8. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
A. State Water Contractors’ Meeting – May 18, 2017  RIDDELL 

 

B. 2017/2018 Operating, General and Wastewater Budgets (DRAFT)  KRIEGER 
 

C. Director’s Report on Conference/Seminar  Attendance          BLOOMER 
 

D. Fire Hydrant and Sample Station Relocation Request at 2380 E. Smokewood Ave.  JOHNSON 
 

 
 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
June 6, 2017 
Page 2 

 
    

9. OUTREACH & CONSERVATION  METZGER 
 A. Media Information 
 

 B. Activities 
 

10. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 
 

11. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
 Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION   
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 

D. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS     
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 0.504 acre west of Indian Canyon Drive between Racquet Club Rd. and Via Olivera 
  APN No. 504-260-026 and portions of APN No. 504-260-025 and 504-260-027 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: Ayres Advisors 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms 
 

E. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: Conveyance of Property APN No. 687-030-019 to City of Cathedral City and 
  Conveyance of Easement APN 677-420-021 to City of Cathedral City   
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: DWA and City of Cathedral City 
  Under Negotiation: Terms 
  

12. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 

13. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Deser t Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working 
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may 
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8804 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 05/16/17 

 
   MINUTES    

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
May 16, 2017 

 
DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
 Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
   
Absent: Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Irene Gaudinez, Human Resources Mgr. ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach & Conserv. Mgr. ) 
        
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 David F. Scriven, Krieger & Stewart ) 
   
Public: David Freedman, P.S. Sustainability Comm. ) 
 William Johnson, Palm Springs resident ) 
      

Attendance 

17823.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Director Ewing in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  
17824.   President Cioffi called for approval of the May 2, 2017 
Regular Board meeting minutes.  
 
  Director Oygar moved for approval. After a second by Vice 
President Stuart, the minutes were approved as written (Secretary-Treasurer 
Bloomer absent, Director Ewing abstained due to his absence). 
 
17825.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on May 1 at approximately 7:35 p.m., a 2-
inch polyethylene water service split open at Village Square North. The 
water ran for approximately 30 minutes. There was damage to the street and 
the pool flooded. Staff replaced 30 feet of service line (copper) and 
completed a large amount of cleanup. He noted there will be more 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 05/02/17 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
Water Service Break 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 



8805 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 05/16/17 

replacements in the area this week.  
 
  Mr. Krause stated for the month of April, approximately 
38,680 acre-feet of water was delivered to the basin and the Whitewater 
Hydro generated 769,759 kWh, collecting $67,517 from SCE (split with 
CVWD) for power produced. 
 
  Mr. Krause noted that Cora Constructors performed the initial 
plant start-up for Desert Palisade 1240 Booster on May 3. All of the 
equipment operated as designed; all work was completed on May 12. 
 
  Mr. Krause reminded everyone that Agency offices will be 
closed on Monday, May 29 in observance of Memorial Day. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted the current system 
leak data; and meetings and activities he participated on during the past 
several weeks. 
   
17826.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  Director Ewing noted that Mr. Johnson, DWA customer, had 
contacted him about addressing the Board at today’s meeting. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. He stated he 
would re-open public comment if/when Mr. Johnson arrives. 
 
17827.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present the 2017/2018 Groundwater Replenishment Assessments. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated at its April 18 meeting, the Board discussed 
the draft Engineer’s report on groundwater replenishment assessments for 
the Mission Creek, Whitewater River and Garnet Hill Subbasins. Today’s 
meeting is attended to allow comments from the public. As indicated in the 
report, the proposed assessments for all three basins will be set at $120 per 
acre-foot. Staff recommends a determination be made that funds should be 
raised by a replenishment assessment, and the Board set the time and place 
for public hearing on June 6, 2017 to consider resolutions of findings in fact 
and levying replenishment assessments for the Fiscal Year 2017/2018. He 
then asked Mr. Scriven to provide a brief overview of the revisions since 
the last discussion on this item. 
 
  Mr. Scriven noted the following changes to the report: 1) 
Exhibits 1 - 3 are hydrographs; 2) Estimated quantities of replenishment 
water were updated (Page II-15); 3) Minor clarifications on the extent of 
management areas; and 4) Explanation of accumulative gross overdraft. 
 
 

GM’s Report 
(Cont.) 
 
Whitewater Deliveries 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Desert Palisade 1240 
Booster 
 
 
 
 
Memorial Day Holiday 
 
 
 
System Leak Data 
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Action: 
 
2017/2018 
Groundwater 
Replenishment 
Assessments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8806 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 05/16/17 

  Director Ewing inquired about Page III-3 and IV-3, Section E 
and the wording of increase, rather than decrease. 
 
  Mr. Scriven said he would review with his office to see if this 
was a typographical error. If so, page revisions will be sent to Agency staff 
to incorporate into the report.  
 
  Director Oygar moved to approve staff’s recommendation, 
noting the clarification as mentioned. Director Ewing seconded the motion, 
which carried unanimously (Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer absent).  
 
17828.  President Cioffi re-opened public input in order to hear Mr. 
Johnson’s comments. 
 
  Mr. Johnson, Palm Springs resident requested the Board look 
into removing the Agency’s fire hydrant and test station at 2380 E. 
Smokewood Ave. 
 
  President Cioffi explained that the Brown Act prohibits the 
Board from acting on items not listed on the agenda. He requested 
management look into this matter and report back to the Board at a later 
date. 
 
17829.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present staff’s request for adoption of Resolution No. 1158 Nomination of 
Kristin Bloomer for candidate of California Special Districts Association 
(CSDA) Board of Directors. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated the attached resolution is being considered 
for the nomination of Kristin Bloomer to CSDA’s Board of Directors. 
CSDA recently announced the nomination period for the voting process. 
The deadline to receive nominations is May 19. CSDA will be mailing out 
ballots on June 2, with a deadline of August 4, 5:00 p.m. The majority of 
travel expenses associated with this position are handled through CSDA’s 
reimbursement policy. It was noted that Ms. Bloomer is absent today 
because she is attending CSDA’s Special District Leadership Academy. 
Staff requests the Board adopt Resolution No. 1158 placing in nomination 
Kristin Bloomer as Director of the Board of California Special Districts 
Association. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
2017/2018 
Groundwater 
Replenishment 
Assessments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Input - Reopened 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Adoption of 
Reso. 1158/Nominate 
Kristin Bloomer CSDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8807 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 05/16/17 

  Director Oygar made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 1158. 
After a second by Director Ewing, the motion carried unanimously 
(Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer absent). 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1158 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF DESERT WATER AGENCY PLACING IN 
NOMINATION KRISTIN BLOOMER AS A 

DIRECTOR OF THE BOARD OF THE 
CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION 

 
17830.  President Cioffi called upon Finance Director Krieger to 
present the request for adoption of Resolution No. 1159 Establishing an 
Account with Sun Community Federal Credit Union for Purposes of 
Investment. 
 
  Mr. Krieger stated that this resolution authorizes 
establishment of accounts with Sun Community Federal Credit Union for 
the investment of DWA’s Operating and General account funds (certificates 
of deposit). The funds invested with Sun Community stay in the local 
community and are utilized in the local economy. Staff would like to 
include them with other authorized investment firms in order to increase 
investment options for the Agency. Staff requests the Board adopt this 
resolution authorizing establishment of an account with Sun Community 
Federal Credit Union. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 1159. 
After a second by Vice President Stuart, the motion carried unanimously 
(Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer absent). 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1159 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY AUTHORIZING THE 

ESTABLISHMENT OF ACCOUNTS WITH 
SUN COMMUNITY FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 

FOR PURPOSES OF INVESTMENT 
(OPERATING FUND/GENERAL FUND) 

 
17831.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present the request for adoption of Resolution No. 1160 Supporting the 
Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) Policy Statement on 
Bay-Delta Flow Requirements. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated that ACWA is requesting member agencies 
to consider adoption of a resolution regarding how the State Water 
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) is managing water quality objectives 
for the Bay-Delta region. In summary, the proposed resolution is requesting 
state agencies to advance both water supply and environmental goals 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1158 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Adoption of 
Reso. 1159/Establish 
Account with Sun 
Community Federal 
Credit Union 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1159 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Adoption of 
Reso. 1160/Support 
ACWA Policy Stmt. 
Bay-Delta Flow Req. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8808 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 05/16/17 

together. Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1160 in support of 
ACWA’s policy statement on Bay-Delta Flow requirements. 
 
  Director Oygar made a motion for adoption of Resolution No. 
1160. After a second by Director Ewing, the motion carried unanimously 
(Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer absent). 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1160 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE DESERT WATER AGENCY IN SUPPORT 
OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA  

WATER AGENCIES’ POLICY STATEMENT  
ON BAY-DELTA FLOW REQUIREMENTS 

   
17832.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to report on 
the April water production figures. 
 
  Mr. Krause reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 15.35 percent reduction in potable water production during April 
compared to April 2013. He noted the cumulative savings June 2015 
through current is 24 percent. He also noted the amount of fresh water 
outflow to the ocean was 5,780,172 acre feet for April. 
    
  In response to President Cioffi, Mr. Krause explained the 
drought surcharge criteria. 
 
17833.  President Cioffi noted his attendance at the ACWA/JPIA 
meetings and the ACWA conference. 
 
  Vice President Stuart reported his attendance at the ACWA 
conference. 
 
  Director Ewing noted his attendance at the ACWA conference 
and its Groundwater Committee meeting. 
 
17834.   At 9:00 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District 
vs. Desert Water Agency; and (D) Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.8, Property-0.504 acre west of Indian 
Canyon Drive between Racquet Club Rd. and Via Olivera, Agency 
Negotiators: Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and 
Steven L. Johnson, Assistant General Manager, Negotiating Parties: DWA 
and Ayres Advisors, Under Negotiation: Price and terms. 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request Adoption of 
Reso. 1160/Support 
ACWA Policy Bay-
Delta Flow Req. 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1160 
Adopted  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion Items: 
April Water Production 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors’ Report on 
ACWA Conference 
Attendance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al.  
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C.  Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
D. Real Property 
Negotiators (DWA & 
Ayres Advisors) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8809 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 05/16/17 

17835.  At 10:58 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
   
17836.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 11:00 a.m. 
 
                                           ____________________________________ 

                                         James Cioffi, President                                  
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Reconvene –No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

 

 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

JUNE 6, 2017 
 

  
    
 
 

 
On May 13 at approximately 5:20 p.m. stand-by personnel responded to a report of a hit fire 
hydrant at the corner of Waverly Dr. and Golf Club Dr. Staff replaced the bolts, gasket and put the 
fire hydrant back in service. A police report was made and the water loss was estimated for a fully 
open 6-inch fire hydrant riser which ran for approximately 30 minutes.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Whitewater Deliveries 
 
For the month of May, approximately 39,000 AC-Ft of water was delivered to the basin and 
Whitewater Hydro generating approximately 761,400 kWh. The plant went offline for 
approximately 7 hours on May 26 due to SCE problems associated with high winds. Staff 
anticipates collecting approximately $67,000 from SCE from the power produced. 

 
 

LAKE PERRIS WATER RECOVERY PROJECT 
 

On Monday May 15, DWA met with CVWD and MWD in Riverside to discuss the current status of 
the project.  The briefing included discussion of agreements, costs, project schedule, CEQA, 
funding, project water yield, water rights and hydrogeology studies. 
 
A funding agreement between MWD and DWR has been finalized and will soon be executed.  It is 
an agreement for the funding of environmental analysis, planning, and preliminary design.  The 
agreement states that the project will recover all seeped water and deliver it to MWD in addition to 
its current Table A water.  The agreement states “MWD shall offer in writing to DWA and CVWD 
the opportunity to share this recovered water proportional to our relative maximum annual Table A 
amounts of Lake Perris”.  If DWA and/or CVWD decide to participate in this Project, MWD, DWA, 
and/or CVWD will need to execute additional funding agreements.  DWA and CVWD have 
expressed their desire to see the findings of DWR’s hydrologic study first before making the final 
decision to participate. 
 
DWR’s hydrogeological study is ongoing.  It has been estimated that as much as 400,000 acre-
feet of water has seeped underneath Perris Dam since it was constructed in 1974.  However, a 
precise estimate of water yield is still to be determined. DWR is currently conducting a study 
which will be finalized soon and is presumed will provide a precise estimate water yield. 
 
The table below shows estimated Project cost through preliminary design, CEQA analysis, and 
permitting that are already included in MWD’s 2017 statement of charges: 
 
Project Work Item Estimated Project Cost 
Task 1: Review and Compile Existing Information $250,000 
Task 2: Field Assessment and Groundwater Modeling $3,000,000 
Task 3: Preliminary Design, CEQA Analysis, and Permitting $4,000,000 
Total (excludes construction, reporting and monitoring $7,250,000 

 
Overall DWR  and MWD Costs incurred for planning, design and construction are estimated at 
between 25 to 27 million dollars (includes costs in table above).  It is anticipated that DWR will 
issue Water System Revenue Bonds that will be recovered through MWD, DWA and CVWD’s 
Statement of Charges. The $7,250,000 is currently being billed to MWD in their statement of 
charges. 
 
DWR will serve as the Lead Agency for the Project under CEQA, and MWD shall serve as a 
Responsible Agency. 

 



 
California WaterFix 
 
Significant progress has been made in the environmental review and approval of the project.  A 
final decision is expected in late spring or early summer this year.  This has made the State Water 
Contractors effort to resolve the method of cost of allocation all the more imperative.  Significant 
progress has been made in this area, however more detailed analysis is necessary. 
   
It is anticipated that DWA staff will present a series of white papers to the Board prepared by the 
State Water Contractors (Based on papers prepared by MWD).  The papers will be presented this 
summer and fall.  The papers will explain the physical infrastructure, the benefits and reasons for 
improving and modernizing the system; the operations and the water supply yield; and the cost 
allocation amongst the contractors and finance. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



STREET NAME QUARTER SECTION NUMBER OF LEAKS

COTTONWOOD RD 4411NW 9

SUNNY DUNES RD 4423NW 5

LINDA VISTA RD 4411NE 4

PASEO EL MIRADOR 4411NW 4

VIA MIRALESTE 4411NW 3

CAHUILLA RD 4410SE 3

CAMINO NORTE 4410NE 2

BROADMOOR DR 4529NW 2

TERRY LN 4413NW 2

MICHELLE RD 4413NW 2

CALLE MARCUS 4411NE 2

PASATIEMPO RD 4411NE 1

STEVENS RD 4410NW 1

N RIVERSIDE DR 4423NW 1

CHINO RD 4410SE 1

INDIAN CANYON DR 4402NW 1

RACQUET CLUB RD 4402NW 1

TAMARISK RD 4411SW 1

AVENIDA CABALLEROS 4411NW 1

ALEJO RD 4412SW 1

VIA VAQUERO 4413SE 1

OLEANDER RD 4519NE 1

WYMAN DR 4402NW 1

CHIA RD 4411NW 1

EASMOR CIR 4413NE 1

CAMINO MONTE 4427SE 1

DESERT PARK AVE 4401SW 1

CALLE CHIA 4423NW 1

HIGH RD 4410SW 1

EL PLACER RD 4519NW 1

TOTAL LEAKS IN SYSTEM: 57

* Streets highlighted in blue are being replaced as part of the

2016/2017 Replacement Pipeline Project

* Streets highlighted in green are included as part of the

proposed list of streets for the 2017/2018 Replacement

Pipeline Project

SYSTEM LEAK DATA

(PERIOD BEGINNING MAY 10, 2017 THRU MAY 30, 2017)





 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Heather
Date

Heather
Circle

Heather
Text Box
G

Heather
Circle

Heather
Text Box
F

Heather
Circle

Heather
Text Box
D

Heather
Circle

Heather
Text Box
B

Heather
Circle

Heather
Text Box
E

Heather
Circle

Heather
Text Box
H

Heather
Circle

Heather
Text Box
C

Heather
Circle

Heather
Text Box
I

Heather
Legend



Heather
Date

Heather
Text Box
THE BOULDERSTRACT 31095

Heather
Text Box
WESSMEN HOLDINGS, LLC

Heather
Text Box
PROJECT"B"

Heather
Typewritten Text

Heather
Typewritten Text

Heather
Typewritten Text
PROJECT DETAILS - 1,371 L.F. OF 8" D.I. WATER MAIN - 4,526 L.F. OF 12" D.I. WATER MAIN- 45      RESIDENTIAL 1" WATER SERVICES - NEW DRAINLINE FROM UPPER TO LOWER RSERVIOR TO BE DESIGNED AND INSTALLED BY DEVELOPER ALONG CHINO CANYON DR

Heather
Typewritten Text
PROJECT STATUS- PROJECT IS STARTING ITS 3RD PLAN CHECK

Heather
Typewritten Text
PROJECT INFORMATIONPROJECT IS ON A 30.4 ACRE SUBDIVISION: COMMUNITY OF 45 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS WITH CUSTOM BUILT HOMES.

Heather
Snapshot



Heather
Date

Heather
Text Box
THE CAMERON PHASE 2TRACT NO. 33575

Heather
Text Box
CAMERON LLC

Heather
Text Box
PROJECT "C"

Heather
Text Box
SITE MAP

Jose
Snapshot

Jose
Typewritten Text

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT DETAILS - 3,067 L.F. OF 8" D.I. WATER MAIN - 85      L.F. OF 12" D.I. WATER MAIN- 102 RESIDENTIAL 1" WATER SERVICES - 5     COMMERCIAL  WATER SERVICES- 15   RESIDENTAIL  FIRE HYDRANTS - 3   IRRIGATION  WATER SERVICES

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT STATUS- PROJECT IS PHASED IN 2 PARTS - PHASE 1.-- STILL IN CONSTRUCTION- PHASE 2.-- START IS PENDING 

Jose
Typewritten Text

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT INFORMATIONPROJECT IS ON A 11.5 ACRE LOT: GATED COMMUNITY OF 80 TOWNHOMES, 22 THREE-STORY "LIVE-WORK UNTIS" AND 15,000 SQ. FT. OF RETAIL SPACE.



Heather
Date

Heather
Text Box
DESERT PALISADESTRACT NO. 35540

Heather
Text Box
PINNACLE VIEW, LLC.

Heather
Text Box
PROJECT"D"

Jose
Snapshot

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT DETAILS- 3532  L.F. OF 16" D.I. TRASMISSION LINE- 6110  L.F. OF 12" D.I. WATER MAIN- 110 RESIDENTIAL 2" WATER SERVICES - 20   RESIDENTIAL FIRE HYDRANTS - 3     IRRIGATION WATER SERVICES- 0.5  M.G. STEEL RESERVIOR- 1    BOOSTER STATION 

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT STATUS - PROJECT LOCATED IN TWO PRESSURE ZONES.- HAS BEEN ACCEPTED INTO OUR SYSTEM.  JOB COMPLETED.

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT INFORMATIONSINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL COMMUNITY CONSISTING OF 110 CUSTOM HOME SITES WITHA SEPARATE LOT OF 1.7 ACRES FOR DWA RESERVOIR SITE TO PROVIDE DOMESTIC WATER. 



Heather
Date

Heather
Text Box
FASHION PLAZAPARCEL MAP NO. 36446

Heather
Text Box
WESSMAN DEVELOPMENT

Heather
Text Box
PROJECT"E"

Jose
Snapshot

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT DETAILS- 1,387 L.F. OF 12" D.I. WATER MAIN -  39  COMMERCIAL 2" WATER SERVICES-  13  COMMERCIAL 6" FIRE SERVICES -  6    COMMERCIAL  FIRE HYDRANTS 

Jose
Text Box
PROJECT STATUS- PROJECT IS UNDER CONSTRUCTION.- MAIN IS ENERGIZED TO PROVIDE FIRE    PROTECTION TO BUILDINGS IN                CONSTRUCTION, BUT HAS NOT  BEEN ACCEPTED. 

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT INFORMATIONTHIS PROJECT INCLUDES THREE NEW CITY BLOCKS THAT WOULD INCLUDE RETAIL,RESTAURANTS, OFFICE SPACE, NEW CITY STREETS AND A SIX-STORY BOUTIQUE HOTEL.  



Heather
Date
05/24/2017

Heather
Text Box
ICON - PALM SPRINGSTRACT NO. 36725

Heather
Text Box
FAR WEST INDUSTRIES 

Heather
Text Box
PROJECT"F"

Heather
Text Box
SITE MAP

Jose
Snapshot

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT DETAILS- 1,948 L.F. OF 8" D.I. WATER MAIN - 7    RESIDENTIAL FIRE HYDRANTS. - 46  RESIDENTIAL 1" WATER SERVICES.- 1    IRRIGATION 2" WATER SERVICE.- 505  L.F. UPSIZE MAIN FROM 6" TO   8" D.I. WATER MAIN. ON "DE ANZA RD".

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT INFORMATIONTHIS PROJECT HAS 46 LOTS FOR SINGLE FAMILY HOMES IN A GATED COMMUNITY. THREE-TWO STORY FLOOR PLANS WITH UP TO 2,006 SQ. FT. PER HOME SIZE. 

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT STATUS- WATER PLANS HAVE BEEN APPROVED- DEVELOPER REQUIREMENTS PACKAGE    (PENDING) 



Heather
Date

Heather
Text Box
MIRALON PHASE 1 & 2TRACT 31848-1, -2

Heather
Text Box
AVALON 1150 LLC

Heather
Text Box
PROJECT"G"

Heather
Snapshot

Heather
Rectangle Sketch to Scale
76,450 sf

Heather
Typewritten Text

Heather
Typewritten Text

Heather
Typewritten Text
PROJECT DETAILS - 7,910   L.F. OF 8"   D.I. WATER MAIN - 15,229 L.F. OF 12" D.I. WATER MAIN- 5,630   L.F. OF 16" D.I. WATER MAIN- 305      L.F. OF 24" D.I. WATER MAIN    - 753      1" RESIDENTIAL WATER SERVICES - 5          2" COMMERCIAL WATER SERVICES- 116      RESIDENTAIL  FIRE HYDRANTS-PRIVATE WELL FOR PUBLIC AREA IRRIGATION-FUTURE DWA WELL SITE

Heather
Typewritten Text
PROJECT STATUS- PROJECT HAS TWO TRACT PHASES- PHASE 1 HAS BEEN BUILT BUT WAS NEVER ACCEPTED BY DWA.  THEY ARE CURRENTLY IN FINAL PLAN CHECKING FOR SETTING UP FOUR SEPERATE  CONSTRUCTION PHASES TO REPAIR THE EXISTING WATER FACILITIES- PHASE 2 HAS STARTED THE PLAN CHECK PROCESS

Heather
Typewritten Text
PROJECT INFORMATIONPROJECT IS A COMMUNITY OF 753 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS SURROUNDING A PUBLIC SPACE COMMUNITY OLIVE GROVE.



Jose
Snapshot

Heather
Date

Heather
Text Box
THE SKYE PHASE 2TRACT MAP 36738

Heather
Text Box
WOOD-BRIDGE PACIFIC GROUP

Heather
Text Box
PROJECT"H"

Jose
Typewritten Text
PHASE 2

Jose
Snapshot

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT DETAILS- 2210 L.F. OF 8" D.I. MAIN.- 40 RESIDENTIAL 1" WATER SERVICES.- 12 RESIDENTIAL FIRE HYDRANTS.

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT STATUS- PHASE 1 IS COMPLETED AND ACCEPTED.- PHASE 2 IS CURRENTLY IN PLAN CHECK. 

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT INFORMATIONTHE PROJECT IS A COMMUNITY OF 40 LUXURY HOMES, THESE SITES HAVE A MINUMUM OF14,000 SQ. FT. AND ARE BUILT ON 4 CUL-DE-SACS OFF RAMON ROAD.



Heather
Date

Heather
Text Box
 THE DISTRICT TRACT 36747

Heather
Text Box
GHA COMPANIES 

Heather
Text Box
PROJECT" I "

Heather
Text Box
SITE MAP

Jose
Snapshot

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT DETAILSWATER.-- 1873 L.F. OF 8" D.I. WATER MAIN- 47 RESIDENTIAL 1" WATER SERVICES -  8  RESIDENTIAL FIRE HYDRANTS-  3  IRRIGATION 1" WATER SERVICES- 59 L.F. OF 12" D.I. WATER MAIN SEWER.-- 1,968 L.F. OF 8" VCP SEWER MAIN - 12  MANHOLES -  47 SEWER LATERALS 

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT STATUS-  PROJECT HAS BEEN COMPLETED &   ACCEPTED INTO OUR SYSTEM.

Jose
Typewritten Text
PROJECT INFORMATIONTHE PROJECT IS A GATED CUMMUNITY WITH 47 RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY HOMES LOCATED IN CATHEDRAL CITY CA.



 

 

General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 
 
Meetings: 
 
05/15/17 DWA Engineering Operations Staff Meeting DWA 
05/15/17 Desert Sun Op/Ed Prep Meeting DWA 
05/15/17 BLM – Whitewater River Recharge Basins – BLM Permit Conf. Call 
05/15/17 Lake Perris Dam Seepage Recovery Project Meeting Riverside (Mills) 
05/16/17 Desert Sun Op/Ed Board/DWA/CVWD Meeting Desert Sun Bldg. 
05/16/17 MSWD Public Records Act – Preparation Meeting DWA 
05/17/17 SWC Delta Committee Meeting Sacramento 
05/17/17 SWC Cal WaterFix Cost Allocation Meeting Sacramento 
05/17/17 SWC Policy Dinner Sacramento 
05/18/17 SWC Monthly Board Meeting Sacramento 
05/18/17 SFCWA Monthly Board Meeting Sacramento 
05/18/18 Sites Reservoir Committee Monthly Meeting Sacramento 
05/19/17 Sites Reservoir Project Site Tour Sacramento 
05/22/17 DWA I.S/Staff/Snow Creek Security Weekly Meeting DWA 
05/23/17 BLM – Whitewater River Recharge Basins – BLM Permit BLM C.P.S. Bldg 
05/24/17 SGMA Tribal Coordination Meeting CVWD P.D. Bldg 
05/24/17 SFCWA Special Board Meeting Conf. Call 
05/29/17 DWA I.S./Staff/Snow Creek Security Weekly Meeting DWA 
05/30/17 DWA Executive Committee Meeting DWA 
05/30/17 DWA Conservation & Public Affairs Committee Meeting DWA 
06/01/17 DWA Finance Committee Meeting DWA 
06/01/17 BLM – Whitewater River Recharge Basins – BLM Permit Conf. Call 

 
Activities: 
 
1) Sites Reservoir 
2) E-Billing – implementing customer payment history capabilities 
3) Outreach Talking Points – KESQ 
4) Snow Creek Hydro SCE contract extension - ongoing 
5) Whitewater Hydro – Developing new administration and operating procedures 
6) State and Federal Contractors Water Authority and Delta Specific Project Committee (Standing) 
7) MSWD Second Amended Petition– Ongoing 
8) ACBCI Section 14 Facilities & Easements 
9)  New Mesquite Property Fencing 
10)  Chain of Title 
11)  Lake Oroville Spillway Damage 
12)  Replacement Pipelines 2017-2018 
13)  Lake Oroville NMFS Requirements 
14) DWA/CVWD/MWD Operations Coordination/Article 21/Pool A/Pool B/Yuba Water 
15) DWA/CVWD/MWD Agreements Update 
16) SGMA Alternative Plans and Bridge Documents/Public Comments 
17) SWP 2017 Water Supply 
18) ACBCI Law Suits 
19) Lake Perris Dam Remediation 
 



Activities: 
(Cont.) 
 
20) Drought Pricing Study 
21) Section 14 Pipeline Easements 
22)  DOI Regulation 
23) DWA Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Budget 
24) A.B. 1562 
25) Cathedral City Monitoring Well Site Abandonment 
26)  Whitewater Hydro Operations Coordination with Recharge Basin O&M 
27) Multi-Agency Rate Study 
28) SGMA Tribal Stakeholder Meetings 
29) 2016/2017 Engineer’s Report on Groundwater Replenishment and Assessment Program 
30) Whitewater Spreading Basins – BLM Permits 
31) Lake Perris Dam Seepage Recovery Project Participation 
32) Cal Waterfix Cost Allocation 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

































7-A 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JUNE 6, 2017 

 
RE: GROUNDWATER REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT 
 WHITEWATER RIVER SUBBASIN (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 
Following presentation of the Engineer's Report on the Groundwater Replenishment and 
Assessment Program for 2017/2018 during the Board’s May 16, 2017 meeting, a 
determination was made that funds should be raised by a replenishment assessment, and 
the Board set the time and place for both a public meeting and public hearing on the matter. 
 
As indicated in the Replenishment Reports, the proposed Whitewater Groundwater 
Replenishment Assessment will be set at $120 per acre-foot.  
 
A copy of the Notice of Public Meeting and Public Hearing was sent to all pumpers on May 
16, 2017 advising them of the scheduled public meeting and hearing, as well as the 
recommended replenishment assessment to be considered.  The Notice of Public Hearing, 
setting the hearing date for today, was published in The Public Record on May 9, 2017.   
 
On May 16, 2017, the Agency held a Public Meeting on the proposed Whitewater 
Groundwater Replenishment Assessment. 
  
A comparison of historic and proposed groundwater replenishment rates for Desert Water 
Agency (DWA) and Coachella Valley Water District (CVWD) is set forth as follows: 

 
YEAR 

  
  DWA $/AF 

  
  CVWD $/AF 

 
DIFFERENCE 

       
03/04  $35.00  $72.86  ($37.86) 
04/05  $45.00  $78.86  ($33.86) 
05/06  $50.00  $78.86  ($28.86) 
06/07  $63.00  $83.34  ($20.34) 
07/08  $63.00  $91.67  ($28.67) 
08/09  $72.00  $93.78  ($21.78) 
09/10  $72.00  $102.45  ($30.45) 
10/11  $82.00  $102.45  ($20.45) 
11/12           $82.00   $107.57  ($25.57) 
12/13   $92.00  $110.26  ($18.26) 
13/14   $92.00  $110.26  ($18.26) 
14/15          $102.00  $110.26   ($8.26) 
15/16          $102.00  $112.00  ($10.00) 
16/17   $102.00  $145.60  ($43.60) 
17/18   $120.00*   $189.28  ($69.28) 

   
  *Proposed Replenishment Assessment Rate 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1161, making findings of fact relevant and 
material to levying the replenishment assessment within the Whitewater River Subbasin. 
 
Staff further recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1162, levying the 2017/2018 
Whitewater River Groundwater Replenishment Assessment in the amount of $120.00 per 
acre-foot. 
 
 
 



Groundwater 2017 Reso. 1161  Making Findings Repl Assess WW 2017-2018 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  1161 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DESERT 
WATER AGENCY MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT RELEVANT AND 
MATERIAL TO THE LEVY OF A REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT 

PURSUANT TO DESERT WATER AGENCY LAW 
 

WHITEWATER RIVER SUBBASIN 
 

  WHEREAS, this Board has called and conducted a public hearing pursuant to 

statute in regard to the levy of a replenishment assessment within a portion of the Desert Water 

Agency for the 2017-2018 fiscal year; and 

  WHEREAS, it appears to this Board that such an assessment should be levied 

based upon the following findings material and relevant to such levy; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Desert 

Water Agency that this Board finds: 

  1. Significant cumulative overdraft conditions exist within that portion of the 

Whitewater River Subbasin of the Upper Coachella Valley lying within the boundaries of the 

Desert Water Agency; therefore, there is need for groundwater replenishment to arrest or reduce 

cumulative groundwater overdraft. 

  2. There is need to levy a replenishment assessment (charge) for fiscal year 

2017-2018 upon groundwater extractions within the aforementioned portion of the Whitewater 

River Subbasin or surface water diversions from streams which would naturally replenish such 

portion of the Whitewater River Subbasin to defray the costs of groundwater replenishment. 

  3. Except for the exclusion provided for in Paragraph 5 herein, such 

groundwater replenishment assessment (charge) shall apply to all water production, both 

groundwater extractions and surface water diversions within the Area of Benefit, at a uniform 

rate in dollars per acre foot. 

  4. Pursuant to statute, the Area of Benefit is hereby delineated as that portion 

of the Whitewater River Subbasin of the Upper Coachella Valley lying within the boundaries of 



Groundwater 2017 Reso. 1161     Making Findings Repl Assess WW 2017-2018 

 

the Desert Water Agency (See Figure 2 in "Engineer's Report on Groundwater Replenishment 

and Assessment Program for the Whitewater River, Mission Creek and Garnet Hill Subbasins 

– Desert Water Agency 2017-2018"), and those areas within the Agency from which diversions 

are made from streamflow which would replenish naturally such portion of the Whitewater River 

Subbasin.  The reason for delineation of this Area of Benefit is that all producers therein, except 

for exclusions provided for in Paragraph 5 herein, benefit from the groundwater replenishment 

program now being carried on by the Agency. 

  5. Extractions of groundwater of 10 acre feet or less per year are excluded 

from this process, and are exempted from the levy of any replenishment assessment pursuant to 

Section 15.4(g) of the Desert Water Agency Law.  Diversions which do not diminish streamflow 

in excess of 10 acre feet per year shall also be excluded.  Production of water pursuant to any 

right to divert surface flow, which has been determined in a statutory adjudication proceeding, 

shall also be exempt from assessment to the extent that such right is prior and paramount to the 

rights of riparian and overlying users within such portion of the Whitewater River Subbasin. 

  6. This Agency plans to take its 2017-2018 Table A Water Allocation under 

its State Water Project Contract and to use such water for replenishment purposes. 

  7. Pursuant to Section 15.4(f) of the Desert Water Agency Law, the 

maximum permissible replenishment assessment rate for State Water Project water for the 2017-

2018 fiscal year, based on the Agency's estimated applicable State Water Project charges of 

$9,397,722 and estimated assessable production within all the Whitewater River, Mission Creek 

and Garnet Hill Subbasins of 41,910 acre feet, is $224.24 per acre foot. 

  8. Pursuant to the provisions of the 2014 Water Management Agreement 

between the Agency and the Coachella Valley Water District, the effective replenishment 

assessment rate for State Water Project water for the 2017-2018 fiscal year, based on the 

Agency's estimated allocated State Water Project charges for its Table A Water Allocation of 

$6,621,173 and estimated assessable production within the Whitewater River, Mission Creek and 

Garnet Hill Subbasins of 41,910 acre feet is $158 per acre foot. 



Groundwater 2017 Reso. 1161     Making Findings Repl Assess WW 2017-2018 

 

  9. Pursuant to Section 15.4(b) of the Desert Water Agency Law, the 

replenishment assessment in any given year may include costs of purchasing, transporting, and 

spreading the water. The 2017-2018 replenishment assessment rate includes a credit of $38 per 

acre foot for discretionary reductions for the Whitewater River Subbasin. 

  10. Pursuant to the above provisions, the 2017-2018 replenishment assessment 

rate is $120 per acre foot. 

  ADOPTED this 6th day of June, 2017. 
  

 

 

 

 ___________________________________ 
 James Cioffi, President 
 Board of Directors 
  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 



Groundwater 2017 Reso. 1162    Levying Repl Assess WW  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1162 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF DESERT WATER AGENCY LEVYING A 
WATER REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
REPLENISHING GROUNDWATER SUPPLIES 

WHITEWATER RIVER SUBBASIN 
 

 WHEREAS, Section 15.4 of the Desert Water Agency Law provides for the levy 

of water replenishment assessment (charge) upon the extraction of groundwater, or the diversion 

of surface supplies which would naturally replenish groundwater supplies; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board has followed and completed the statutory procedures 

required for the levy of such water replenishment assessment, including the adoption by 

resolution of specific findings of fact on all matters relevant and material to the purpose for 

which a water replenishment assessment may be levied. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Desert Water Agency as follows: 
 

 1. The Board does hereby levy a water replenishment assessment upon all 

water produced during the 2017-2018 fiscal year from within the area of benefit as hereinafter 

determined. 
 

 2. The area of benefit is hereby determined to be that portion of the 

Whitewater River Subbasin lying within the boundaries of the Desert Water Agency (See Figure 

2 in "Engineer's Report on Groundwater Replenishment and Assessment Program for the 

Whitewater River, Mission Creek and Garnet Hill Subbasins - Desert Water Agency, 2017-

2018"), and those areas within the Agency from which diversions are made from streamflow 

which would replenish naturally such portion of the Whitewater River Subbasin.  Except for the 



Groundwater 2017 Reso. 1162   Levying Repl Assess WW  

 

exemptions provided in Paragraph 5 herein, water production shall include both groundwater 

extractions and surface water diversions. 

 

 3. The water replenishment assessment in such area of benefit shall be at the 

rate of $120.00 per acre foot.  The water replenishment assessment shall be due and payable on a 

quarterly basis, and shall be paid within 30 days after the end of each quarter ending September 

30, December 31, March 31, and June 30. 
 

 4. The General Manager of the Agency shall give notice of the levy of this 

water replenishment assessment, and shall provide the necessary forms for production 

statements, as required by Sections 15.4(h) and 15.4(i) of the Desert Water Agency Law. 
 

 5. Minimal production, either groundwater extractions of 10 acre feet or less 

per year, or streamflow diversions which do not diminish the flow in excess of 10 acre feet per 

year, shall be exempt from any water replenishment assessment.  Production of water pursuant to 

any right to divert surface flow, which has been determined in a statutory adjudication 

proceeding, shall also be exempt from any water replenishment assessment to the extent that 

such right is prior and paramount to the rights of riparian and overlying users within such portion 

of the Whitewater River Subbasin. 
 

  ADOPTED this 6th  day of June, 2017. 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       James Cioffi, President 
       Board of Directors 
        
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 



7-B 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JUNE 6, 2017 

 
RE: GROUNDWATER REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT 
 MISSION CREEK SUBBASIN (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 
Following presentation of the Engineer's Report on the Groundwater Replenishment and 
Assessment Program for 2017/2018 during the Board’s May 16, 2017 meeting, a 
determination was made that funds should be raised by a replenishment assessment, and 
the Board set the time and place for both a public meeting and public hearing on the matter. 
 
As indicated in the Replenishment Reports, the proposed Mission Creek Groundwater 
Replenishment Assessment will be set at $120 per acre-foot.  
 
A copy of the Notice of Public Meeting and Public Hearing was sent to all pumpers on May 
16, 2017 advising them of the scheduled public meeting and hearing, as well as the 
recommended replenishment assessment to be considered.  The Notice of Public Hearing, 
setting the hearing date for today, was published in The Public Record on May 9, 2017.   
 
On May 16, 2017, the Agency held a Public Meeting on the proposed Mission Creek 
Groundwater Replenishment Assessment. 
  
A comparison of historic and proposed groundwater replenishment rates for Desert Water 
Agency (DWA) and Coachella Valley Water District (CVWD) is set forth as follows: 
 

 
YEAR 

  
  DWA $/AF 

  
  CVWD $/AF 

 
DIFFERENCE 

       
03/04  $35.00   $59.80  ($24.80) 
04/05  $46.00  $59.80  ($13.80) 
05/06  $50.00  $59.80  ($9.80) 
06/07  $63.00  $65.78  ($2.78) 
07/08  $63.00  $72.36  ($9.36) 
08/09  $72.00  $76.60  ($4.60) 
09/10  $72.00  $87.56  ($15.56) 
10/11  $82.00  $89.75  ($7.75) 
11/12  $82.00  $98.73  ($16.73) 
12/13  $92.00  $98.73  ($6.73) 
13/14  $92.00  $98.73  ($6.73) 
14/15   $102.00  $98.73  $3.27 
15/16  $102.00  $112.00  ($10.00) 
16/17  $102.00  $123.20  ($21.20) 
17/18  $120.00*  $135.52  ($15.52) 

 
  *Proposed Replenishment Assessment Rate 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1163, making findings of fact relevant and 
material to levying the replenishment assessment within the Mission Creek River Subbasin. 
 
Staff further recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1164, levying the 2016/2017 Mission 
Creek Groundwater Replenishment Assessment in the amount of $120.00 per acre-foot. 
 
 
 



Groundwater 2017 Reso. 1163  Making Findings Repl Assess MC 2017-2018 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1163 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DESERT 
WATER AGENCY MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT RELEVANT AND 
MATERIAL TO THE LEVY OF A REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT 

PURSUANT TO DESERT WATER AGENCY LAW 
 

MISSION CREEK SUBBASIN 
 

  WHEREAS, this Board has called and conducted a public hearing pursuant to 

statute in regard to the levy of a replenishment assessment within a portion of the Desert Water 

Agency for the 2017-2018 fiscal year; and 

  WHEREAS, it appears to this Board that such an assessment should be levied 

based upon the following findings material and relevant to such levy; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Desert 

Water Agency that this Board finds: 

  1. Significant cumulative overdraft conditions exist within that portion of the 

Mission Creek River Subbasin of the Upper Coachella Valley lying within the boundaries of the 

Desert Water Agency; therefore, there is need for groundwater replenishment to arrest or reduce 

cumulative groundwater overdraft. 

  2. There is need to levy a replenishment assessment (charge) for fiscal year 

2017-2018 upon groundwater extractions within the aforementioned portion of the Mission 

Creek Subbasin or surface water diversions from streams which would naturally replenish such 

portion of the Mission Creek Subbasin to defray the costs of groundwater replenishment. 

  3. Except for the exclusion provided for in Paragraph 5 herein, such 

groundwater replenishment assessment (charge) shall apply to all water production, both 

groundwater extractions and surface water diversions within the Area of Benefit, at a uniform 

rate in dollars per acre-foot. 

  4. Pursuant to statute, the Area of Benefit is hereby delineated as that portion 

of the Mission Creek Subbasin of the Upper Coachella Valley lying within the boundaries of the 



Groundwater 2017 Reso. 1163  Making Findings Repl Assess MC 2017-2018 
 

Desert Water Agency (See Figure 2 in "Engineer's Report on Groundwater Replenishment and 

Assessment Program for the Whitewater River, Mission Creek and Garnet Hill Subbasins – 

Desert Water Agency 2017-2018"), and those areas within the Agency from which diversions 

are made from streamflow which would replenish naturally such portion of the Mission Creek 

Subbasin.  The reason for delineation of this Area of Benefit is that all producers therein, except 

for exclusions provided for in Paragraph 5 herein, benefit from the groundwater replenishment 

program now being carried on by the Agency. 

  5. Extractions of groundwater of 10 acre feet or less per year are excluded 

from this process, and are exempted from the levy of any replenishment assessment pursuant to 

Section 15.4(g) of the Desert Water Agency Law.  Diversions which do not diminish streamflow 

in excess of 10 acre feet per year shall also be excluded.  Production of water pursuant to any 

right to divert surface flow, which has been determined in a statutory adjudication proceeding, 

shall also be exempt from assessment to the extent that such right is prior and paramount to the 

rights of riparian and overlying users within such portion of the Mission Creek Subbasin. 

  6. This Agency plans to take its 2017-2018 Table A Water Allocation under 

its State Water Project Contract and to use such water for replenishment purposes. 

  7. Pursuant to Section 15.4(f) of the Desert Water Agency Law, the 

maximum permissible replenishment assessment rate for State Water Project water for the 2017-

2018 fiscal year, based on the Agency's estimated applicable State Water Project charges of 

$9,397,722 and estimated assessable production within the Whitewater River, Mission Creek and 

Garnet Hill Subbasins of 41,910 acre feet, is $224.24 per acre foot. 

  8. Pursuant to the provisions of the 2014 Water Management Agreement 

between the Agency and the Coachella Valley Water District, the effective replenishment 

assessment rate for State Water Project water for the 2017-2018 fiscal year, based on the 

Agency's estimated allocated State Water Project charges for its Table A Water Allocation of 

$6,621,173 and estimated assessable production within both the Whitewater River, Mission 

Creek and Garnet Hill Subbasins of 41,910 acre feet is $158 per acre foot. 



 

Groundwater 2017 Reso. 1163  Making Findings Repl Assess MC 2017-2018 
 

  9. Pursuant to Section 15.4(b) of the Desert Water Agency Law, the 

replenishment assessment in any given year may include costs of purchasing, transporting, and 

spreading the water.  The 2017-2018 replenishment assessment rate includes a credit of $38 per 

acre foot for discretionary reductions for the Mission Creek Subbasin. 

  10. Pursuant to the above provisions, the 2017-2018 replenishment assessment 

rate is $120 per acre foot. 
  

 ADOPTED this 6th day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 __________________________________ 
 James Cioffi, President 
 Board of Directors 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 



Groundwater 2017 Reso. 1164     Levying Repl Assess MC 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1164 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF DESERT WATER AGENCY LEVYING A 
WATER REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
REPLENISHING GROUNDWATER SUPPLIES 

MISSION CREEK SUBBASIN 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 15.4 of the Desert Water Agency Law provides for the levy 

of a water replenishment assessment (charge) upon the extraction of groundwater, or the 

diversion of surface supplies which would naturally replenish groundwater supplies; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board has followed and completed the statutory procedures 

required for the levy of such water replenishment assessment, including the adoption by 

resolution of specific findings of fact on all matters relevant and material to the purpose for 

which a water replenishment assessment may be levied. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Desert Water Agency as follows: 
 

 1. The Board does hereby levy a water replenishment assessment upon all 

water produced during the 2017-2018 fiscal year from within the area of benefit as hereinafter 

determined. 
 

 2. The area of benefit is hereby determined to be that portion of the Mission 

Creek Subbasin lying within the boundaries of the Desert Water Agency (See Figure 2 in 

"Engineer's Report on Groundwater Replenishment and Assessment Program for the Whitewater 

River, Mission Creek and Garnet Hill Subbasins - Desert Water Agency, 2017-2018"), and those 

areas within the Agency from which diversions are made from streamflow which would 

replenish naturally such portion of the Mission Creek Subbasin.  Except for the exemptions 



Groundwater 2017  Reso. 1164   Levying Repl Assess MC 

 

provided in Paragraph 5 herein, water production shall include both groundwater extractions and 

surface water diversions. 

 3. The water replenishment assessment in such area of benefit shall be at the 

rate of $120.00 per acre foot.  The water replenishment assessment shall be due and payable on a 

quarterly basis, and shall be paid within 30 days after the end of each quarter ending September 

30, December 31, March 31, and June 30. 
 

 4. The General Manager of the Agency shall give notice of the levy of this 

water replenishment assessment, and shall provide the necessary forms for production 

statements, as required by Sections 15.4(h) and 15.4(i) of the Desert Water Agency Law. 
 

 5. Minimal production, either groundwater extractions of 10 acre feet or less 

per year, or streamflow diversions which do not diminish the flow in excess of 10 acre feet per 

year, shall be exempt from any water replenishment assessment.  Production of water pursuant to 

any right to divert surface flow, which has been determined in a statutory adjudication 

proceeding, shall also be exempt from any water replenishment assessment to the extent that 

such right is prior and paramount to the rights of riparian and overlying users within such portion 

of the Mission Creek Subbasin. 
 

  ADOPTED this 6th day of June, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       James Cioffi, President 
       Board of Directors 
        
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 



7-C 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JUNE 6, 2017 

 
RE: GROUNDWATER REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT 
 GARNET HILL SUBBASIN (PUBLIC HEARING) 
 
Following presentation of the Engineer's Report on the Groundwater Replenishment and 
Assessment Program for 2017/2018 during the Board’s May 16, 2017 meeting, a 
determination was made that funds should be raised by a replenishment assessment, and 
the Board set the time and place for both a public meeting and public hearing on the matter. 
 
As indicated in the Replenishment Reports, the proposed Garnet Hill Groundwater 
Replenishment Assessment will be set at $120 per acre-foot.  
 
A copy of the Notice of Public Meeting and Public Hearing was sent to all pumpers on May 
16, 2017 advising them of the scheduled public meeting and hearing, as well as the 
recommended replenishment assessment to be considered.  The Notice of Public Hearing, 
setting the hearing date for today, was published in The Public Record on May 9, 2017.   
 
On May 16, 2017, the Agency held a Public Meeting on the proposed Garnet Hill 
Groundwater Replenishment Assessment. 
  
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1165, making findings of fact relevant and 
material to levying the replenishment assessment within the Garnet Hill Subbasin. 
 
Staff further recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1166, levying the 2017/2018 Garnet 
Hill Groundwater Replenishment Assessment in the amount of $120.00 per acre-foot. 
 
 
 



Groundwater 2017 Reso. 1165 Making Findings Repl Assess GH 2017-2018 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1165 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DESERT 
WATER AGENCY MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT RELEVANT AND 
MATERIAL TO THE LEVY OF A REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT 

PURSUANT TO DESERT WATER AGENCY LAW 
 

GARNET HILL SUBBASIN 
 

  WHEREAS, this Board has called and conducted a public hearing pursuant to 

statute in regard to the levy of a replenishment assessment within a portion of the Desert Water 

Agency for the 2017-2018 fiscal year; and 

  WHEREAS, it appears to this Board that such an assessment should be levied 

based upon the following findings material and relevant to such levy; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Desert 

Water Agency that this Board finds: 

  1. Significant cumulative overdraft conditions exist within that portion of the 

Garnet Hill Subbasin of the Upper Coachella Valley lying within the boundaries of the Desert 

Water Agency; therefore, there is need for groundwater replenishment to arrest or reduce 

cumulative groundwater overdraft. 

  2. There is need to levy a replenishment assessment (charge) for fiscal year 

2017-2018 upon groundwater extractions within the aforementioned portion of the Garnet Hill 

Subbasin or surface water diversions from streams which would naturally replenish such portion 

of the Garnet Hill Subbasin to defray the costs of groundwater replenishment. 

  3. Except for the exclusion provided for in Paragraph 5 herein, such 

groundwater replenishment assessment (charge) shall apply to all water production, both 

groundwater extractions and surface water diversions within the Area of Benefit, at a uniform 

rate in dollars per acre-foot. 

  4. Pursuant to statute, the Area of Benefit is hereby delineated as that portion 

of the Garnet Hill Subbasin of the Upper Coachella Valley lying within the boundaries of the 



Groundwater 2017 Reso. 1165 Making Findings Repl Assess GH 2017-2018 
 

Desert Water Agency (See Figure 2 in "Engineer's Report on Groundwater Replenishment and 

Assessment Program for the Whitewater River, Mission Creek and Garnet Hill Subbasins – 

Desert Water Agency 2017-2018"), and those areas within the Agency from which diversions 

are made from streamflow which would replenish naturally such portion of the Garnet Hill 

Subbasin.  The reason for delineation of this Area of Benefit is that all producers therein, except 

for exclusions provided for in Paragraph 5 herein, benefit from the groundwater replenishment 

program now being carried on by the Agency. 

  5. Extractions of groundwater of 10 acre feet or less per year are excluded 

from this process, and are exempted from the levy of any replenishment assessment pursuant to 

Section 15.4(g) of the Desert Water Agency Law.  Diversions which do not diminish streamflow 

in excess of 10 acre feet per year shall also be excluded.  Production of water pursuant to any 

right to divert surface flow, which has been determined in a statutory adjudication proceeding, 

shall also be exempt from assessment to the extent that such right is prior and paramount to the 

rights of riparian and overlying users within such portion of the Garnet Hill Subbasin. 

  6. This Agency plans to take its 2017-2018 Table A Water Allocation under 

its State Water Project Contract and to use such water for replenishment purposes. 

  7. Pursuant to Section 15.4(f) of the Desert Water Agency Law, the 

maximum permissible replenishment assessment rate for State Water Project water for the 2017-

2018 fiscal year, based on the Agency's estimated applicable State Water Project charges of 

$9,397,722 and estimated assessable production within all the Whitewater River, Mission Creek 

and Garnet Hill Subbasins of 41,910 acre feet, is $224.24 per acre foot. 

  8. Pursuant to the provisions of the 2014 Water Management Agreement 

between the Agency and the Coachella Valley Water District, the effective replenishment 

assessment rate for State Water Project water for the 2017-2018 fiscal year, based on the 

Agency's estimated allocated State Water Project charges for its Table A Water Allocation of 

$6,621,173 and estimated assessable production within all the Whitewater River, Mission Creek 

and Garnet Hill Subbasins of 41,910 acre feet is $158 per acre foot. 



 

Groundwater 2017 Reso. 1165 Making Findings Repl Assess GH 2017-2018 
 

  9. Pursuant to Section 15.4(b) of the Desert Water Agency Law, the 

replenishment assessment in any given year may include costs of purchasing, transporting, and 

spreading the water.  The 2017-2018 replenishment assessment rate includes a credit of $38 per 

acre foot for discretionary reductions for the Garnet Hill Subbasin. 

  10. Pursuant to the above provisions, the 2017-2018 replenishment assessment 

rate is $120 per acre foot. 
  

 ADOPTED this 6th day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 ___________________________________ 
 James Cioffi, President 
 Board of Directors 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 



Groundwater 2017 Reso. 1166     Levying Repl Assess GH 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1166 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF DESERT WATER AGENCY LEVYING A 
WATER REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
REPLENISHING GROUNDWATER SUPPLIES 

GARNET HILL SUBBASIN 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 15.4 of the Desert Water Agency Law provides for the levy 

of a water replenishment assessment (charge) upon the extraction of groundwater, or the 

diversion of surface supplies which would naturally replenish groundwater supplies; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board has followed and completed the statutory procedures 

required for the levy of such water replenishment assessment, including the adoption by 

resolution of specific findings of fact on all matters relevant and material to the purpose for 

which a water replenishment assessment may be levied. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Desert Water Agency as follows: 
 

 1. The Board does hereby levy a water replenishment assessment upon all 

water produced during the 2017-2018 fiscal year from within the area of benefit as hereinafter 

determined. 
 

 2. The area of benefit is hereby determined to be that portion of the Garnet 

Hill Subbasin lying within the boundaries of the Desert Water Agency (See Figure 2 in 

"Engineer's Report on Groundwater Replenishment and Assessment Program for the Whitewater 

River, Mission Creek and Garnet Hill Subbasins - Desert Water Agency, 2017-2018"), and those 

areas within the Agency from which diversions are made from streamflow which would 

replenish naturally such portion of the Garnet Hill Subbasin.  Except for the exemptions 



Groundwater 2017  Reso. 1166    Levying Repl Assess GH 

 

provided in Paragraph 5 herein, water production shall include both groundwater extractions and 

surface water diversions. 

 3. The water replenishment assessment in such area of benefit shall be at the 

rate of $120.00 per acre foot.  The water replenishment assessment shall be due and payable on a 

quarterly basis, and shall be paid within 30 days after the end of each quarter ending September 

30, December 31, March 31, and June 30. 
 

 4. The General Manager of the Agency shall give notice of the levy of this 

water replenishment assessment, and shall provide the necessary forms for production 

statements, as required by Sections 15.4(h) and 15.4(i) of the Desert Water Agency Law. 
 

 5. Minimal production, either groundwater extractions of 10 acre feet or less 

per year, or streamflow diversions which do not diminish the flow in excess of 10 acre feet per 

year, shall be exempt from any water replenishment assessment.  Production of water pursuant to 

any right to divert surface flow, which has been determined in a statutory adjudication 

proceeding, shall also be exempt from any water replenishment assessment to the extent that 

such right is prior and paramount to the rights of riparian and overlying users within such portion 

of the Garnet Hill Subbasin. 
 

  ADOPTED this 6th day of June, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       James Cioffi, President 
       Board of Directors 
        
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 



8-A 

01358.00002\29817841.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

May 18, 2017 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

RE: MAY 18, 2017 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING AND BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING OF THE STATE WATER CONTRACTORS 

The May 18, 2017 annual membership meeting and Board meeting of the State 

Water Contractors, Inc., were conducted at the Tsakopoulos Library Galleria in downtown 

Sacramento. 

1. Annual Membership Meeting 

The annual membership meeting of the State Water Contractors began promptly 

at 8:30 a.m.  The first item of business was the selection of Board members to represent each of 

the classes for the upcoming year.  The incumbent Directors were reappointed to the Board 

except as follows: Roland Sanford was appointed to take the place of Phil Miller as the Director 

from the Napa area, while the Class 8 (East Branch) Contractors reelected Doug Hedrick of San 

Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District to one position and elected Robert Cheng of 

Coachella Valley Water District to take the place of Kirby Brill as the other Class 8 Director. 

SWC staff provided a report on accomplishments during the previous year, and 

proposed objectives for the upcoming year.  A copy of the PowerPoint presentation used to 

provide that report is enclosed with this memo.  Energy accomplishments included preventing a 

change in the Cal ISO governing structure for the proposed expansion of ISO outside of 

California, and also the filing of claims with SCE and PG&E for recovery of transmission rates 

charged by those utilities.  Infrastructure accomplishments included repair of the Oroville river 

valves, initial hydraulic modeling and assessment of ground elevation subsidence affecting SWP 

aqueduct facilities, and accelerated emergency repair of the damaged intake structure at the 

Clifton Court Forebay.  Water supply accomplishments included preparation of the EIR/EIS for 

Cal Water Fix, which will be completed within two weeks following issuance of biological 



 

 
- 2 - 

01358.00002\29817841.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

opinions on June 9; testimony before the State Water Resources Control Board for the proposed 

change in the point of diversion for Cal Water Fix; and creation of the Delta Compliance 

Committee to understand Delta regulatory compliance requirements, projects and costs. 

2. Election of SWC Board Officers 

Upon conclusion of the annual membership meeting, the monthly meeting of the 

SWC Board of Directors was called to order. The first item of business was the selection of 

officers for the upcoming fiscal year.  Mark Gilkey of Tulare Lake Basin Water Storage District 

was selected as President of the Board, Steve Arakawa of Metropolitan Water District was 

selected as Vice President, and Matt Stone of Castaic Lake Water Agency was selected as 

Secretary.   

3. SWP Operations Report 

John Leahigh of DWR reported that the State Water Project is still enjoying  a 

very good year in terms of water supply.  The gated spillway at Oroville was scheduled for shut 

down the following day for the final time this year.  Thereafter DWR was expected to manage 

releases from Oroville by delivering water through the Hyatt hydro facilities.  Leahigh reported 

that this year DWR released 5.2 million acre feet of water from the Oroville spillway, breaking a 

previous record of 2.1 million acre feet in a single year.  Flow regulations have taken effect on 

the San Joaquin River, reducing the quantity of the water available for export from the Delta.  

Article 21 deliveries were terminated the week prior to the meeting.  This water year has been 

the wettest year on record, but also was warmer than normal.  In 1983 the SWP watershed had 

almost twice as much snowpack as this year.  Due to the problems with the spillway at Oroville, 

and DWR’s precautionary measures to keep the lake level less than full to prevent potential 

problems, the SWP will be going into next year with less storage than normally would have been 

the case following a year like the one we just had.  The lower storage heading into next year will 

likely affect next year’s allocation as well.  Leahigh reported that although an increase in the 

allocation is possible for this year, a further increase appears unlikely at this point.   

 

 



 

 
- 3 - 

01358.00002\29817841.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

4. General Manager’s Report 

SWC General Manager Jennifer Pierre reported that a letter to the Delta 

Stewardship Council commenting on the proposed Delta Plan would be sent out that day.  She 

stated that the Delta Stewardship Council would be taking public comment on the proposed 

Delta Plan the following Thursday, May 25, and that a large number of people representing 

environmental interests were expected to provide comment in support of further restrictions on 

exports from the Delta.  She asked Contractors to appear and provide comment in favor of the 

Cal Water Fix project, if possible.  She noted that the biological opinions are expected to be 

issued on June 9, that the Record of Decision/Notice of Determination on the environmental 

document would be issued approximately two weeks thereafter, and that DWR would 

immediately file a validation action to ultimately clear the way for issuing bonds to finance the 

project.  She also reported that the June meeting would be conducted in Chico rather than in 

Sacramento.  

5. Cal Water Fix Cost Allocation Discussions  

The Wednesday preceding the Thursday SWC meetings, there was a committee 

presentation and discussion at the Resources Building regarding the proposed method of 

allocating costs among Contractors for the Cal Water Fix project.  A preliminary analysis had 

been prepared using certain assumptions, including cost estimates that will have to updated later, 

to illustrate the proposed method of allocating cost.  The key assumption, and the likely course, 

is that all Contractors will be required to participate in the Cal Water Fix project pursuant to their 

existing Water Supply Contracts.  Contractors that cannot afford the cost will be allowed to sell 

or lease portions of their Table A Amounts, possibly with a “call back” provision to allow them 

to recover leased or sold amounts at a later date.  The analysis demonstrated what the unit cost of 

water is projected to be, per acre foot, once the project is constructed and the annual reliability 

increases from an assumed 48% reliability to an assumed 61% reliability.  The analysis used 

three Contractors as examples to show how much of their Table A Amounts would have to be 

sold in order to allow them to maintain their current unit cost for water received.  The SWC is 

not yet prepared to release that analysis in print, because it needs to be refined.  However, the 

plan is to develop a model that will allow each Contractor to project for itself what its additional 



 

 
- 4 - 

01358.00002\29817841.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

unit costs of water will be, and how much of its Table A Amount would have to be sold in order 

to maintain the existing unit costs for water received. 

 

Michael T. Riddell  



State Water Contractors 
2016-17 Accomplishments 
2017-18 Objectives 

STATE WATER CONTRACTORS BOARD 	 SWC 
MAY 18, 2017 

Agenda 

Overview of Major Accomplishments and Revised 
Objectives by Group 

Four Major Groups: 

1. Energy Resources 

2. infrastructure Reliability 

3. Business Process 

4. Water Supply 

State Water Contractors Board 	 ,a 



Energy Resources Accomplishments 

■ FY 2016-17 
1. Contribute to effort to avoid legislation that would have 

allowed CAISO to expand which would have increased SWP 
transmission costs even more. 

2. Join group of utilities (including DWR) in making claims 
against PG&E over excessive transmission costs and 
insufficient stakeholder input. 

3. Coordinating with DWR to ensure the Habitat Expansion 
Plan remains viable instead of unproven and expensive fish 
passage at Oroville. 

State Water Contractors Board May 18, 2017 Page 3 

Energy Resources Objectives 

■ FY 2017-18 
No Objectives Revised: 

• Address threats and opportunities to SWP Operations and Economics 
under Post-2020 Energy Policy 

• Improve understanding of spot and near-term resource procurement 
and practices to manage risk 

• Work with DWR on appropriate greenhouse gas and renewables 
policies that reflect SWP utility characteristics and rate concerns 

• Obtaining acceptable new license for the Oroville complex and initiate 
process for same at SoCal facilities. 

• Assure proper legal representation for potential litigation 

State Water Contractors Board 	 May 18,2017 	 Page 4 

2 



Page 5 May 18, 2017 State Water Contractors Board 

Infrastructure Reliability Accomplishments 

■ FY 2016-17 
1. Modifications to Hyatt River Valve System completed and 

successfully operated up to intended 4,000 cfs capacity. 

2. Initial hydraulic modeling and assessment of subsidence 
impacts to California Aqueduct capacity was performed. 

3. Phase III of Control System upgrade (Oroville FD and all 
check sites) was completed. 

4. Accelerated emergency repair of broken Clifton Court intake 
structure (not on Objectives list). 

Infrastructure Reliability Objectives 

■ FY 2017-18 
Objectives Revised: 

• Remove Oroville River Valves 

• Add Oroville Spillway Remediation and Improvement (priority 1) 

• Add SWP Seismic Vulnerability Studies (priority 2) 

• Combine Motor/Gen refurb with Valve Rehab item (priority 3) 

State Water Contractors Board 	 May 18, 2017 	 Page 6 

3 



Business Process Accomplishments 

FY 2016-17 
1. Provided standardized reports of DWR's B132-17 draft budget data to Contractor 

Committees, to assist with the review of the 2018 Statement of Charges 

2. Provided analysis and isolated the causes of recent increases in the Contractors' 
Statement of Charges; Transportation and Conservation Minimum Charges 

3. Support Contractors' SWP Reporting Strategy Workgroup in developing near-term 
and long-term reporting strategies 

4. Provide support for current contract amendment activities 

5. Proposed standardized auditing categories to assist Contractors' development of a 
proposal to DWR addressing the prevention of errors or irregularities, identification of 
accounting problems, and ensuring that corrective action is taken 

6. Promote and communicate comprehensive solution(s) for providing revenue stream 
for SWRDS' unfunded activities post-2035 and managing 51(e) revenues 

Slate Water Contractors Board May 18, 2017 Page 7 

Business Process Objectives 

FY 2017-18 
® 	Retitled Business Process Objectives to align with functions of a Chief Financial Manager 

OBJECTIVES: 

F
un

ct
io

n
s
  o
f
 F
in

a
n

ci
a
l M

a
n
a
ge

m
e
n
t  1.  Budgets Monitor and promote DWR's development and management of a SWP budget to minimize 

annual variances and optimize reasonable revenue requirements 

2.  Financial Projections Monitor and promote DWR's analysis, development and management of SWP's cost trends 
to maximize operational readiness at an optimal cost level ensuring long-term affordability 

3.  
Financial Resources, Revenue 
Requirements, and Investments 

Monitor and assess DWR's State Water Project financial performance with regard to 
operational goals, budgets, financial targets, and forecasts to maximize use of available revenues 
and optimize determination of revenue requirement 

4.  
SWRDS Capital Development and 
Investment in Capital 
Infrastructure 

Monitor and assess DWR's State Water Project capital infrastructure goals, budgets, 
financial targets, and forecasts to maximize debt financing and investment ensuring stable and level 
capital revenue requirements 

5.  
Business Process Control 
Activities and Environment 

Monitor and promote DWR's internal control directives, activities and environment to 
minimize financial risk, ensure financial integrity and maintain reporting reliability 

6.  Cash-flow 
Monitor and promote DWR's development and management of a SWP cash-flow 
statement(s) and business process to ensure short-term and long-term SWP Gash availability 
regardless of project purpose 

State Water Contractors Board 	 May 18, 2017 	 Page 8 

4 



Water Supply Accomplishments 

FY 2016-17 
1. The Final EIS/R, Biological Assessment, and 2081 Permit Application 

for the California WaterFix were completed and submitted. 

2. The SWC worked with DWR to prepare and present testimony for the 
State Water Resource Control Board's Change in Point of Diversion 
hearing for California WaterFix. 

3. The DWR/SWC Delta Compliance Committee was created and met 
regularly with the goal of understanding Delta regulatory compliance 
projects and costs. 

State Water Contractors Board May 18, 2017 Page 9 

Water Supply Objectives 

■ FY 2017-18 
Objectives Revised: 

• Add Long-term Operations Reconsultation 
• Participate in the reinitiation of consultation on the CVP/SWP Long-term 

Operations for development of near-term project operations and associated 
Biological Opinions 

• Add Delta Plan 
• Coordinate with DSC staff and board to ensure revisions to the Delta Plan are 

consistent with SWC planning and operations 

• Expanded "Facilitate Water Transfers" 
■ Include work on improving flexibility of Table A transfers. 

State Water Contractors Board 	 May 18, 2017 	 Page 10 

5 



Board Action Request 

■ Approve the State Water Contractors Work Objectives 
for Fiscal Year 2017-18 

State Water Contractors Board May 18, 2017 Page 11 

Questions 

Jennifer Pierre 

State Water Contractors 

JPierre@swc.org  

(916) 447-7357 ex: 203 

State Water Contractors Board 	 May 18, 2017 Page 12 

6 



Nimbus 
Release 
9,500 cfs 

Freeport 
North By Aquedvct 	f 	56,501 cfs 

Clifton Court 2,400 cfs 
Jones PP 2,750 cfs 
Vernalis 20,374 cfs 

0 

0' Ct 

Pyramid -4 

Castaic 
Silverwood Southern Reservoirs Storage 

0.63 MAF 

Perris 

Agenda Item 5a 

Trinity Storage 
2.33 MAF 

Shasta Storage 
4.38 MAF 

State Water Contractors Board 
Meeting 

May 18, 2017 

Keswick Release 
13,000 cfs 

Oroville Storage 
• 2.61 MAF 

3 	ytd 	Oroville 
Releases 

o 20,550 cfs 

Net Delta Outflow 
74,700 cfs 

New Melones Storage 
2.06 MAF 

River 

San Luis: 
SWP 1.06 M 
CVP 0.96 MAF 

Total 2.02 MAF 

IN  

O&M,OSC 

Data compiled on:  
5/17/2017 



C
u

m
u

la
t i

ve
  D

ai
ly

/M
o

n
th

ly
  P

re
c

ip
it

at
io

n
  (

in
ch

es
)  

100 

95 

90 

85 

80 

75 

70 

65 

60 

55 

50 

45 

40 

35 

30 

25 

20 

15 

10 

5 

0 

MS-C—=-Mount Shasta 
SHA - Shasta Dam 
MNR - Mineral 

Percent of Average for this Date: 200% 
Current Daily Precip (wettest): 93.3 

1982-1983 (2nd wettest) 

1997-1998 

2015-2016 Daily Precip 

Average (1922-1998) 

2014-2015 Daily Precip 	37.2  

	I 

1976-1977(2nd driest & driest thru Aug) 	19.0 

- Quincy 
- Brush Creek 

Sierraville RS 
- Blue Canyon 

- 

 

Pacific House 

QRD 
BCM 

SRR 
BYM 

- 88.5 

82.4 

57.9 

50.0 

North Sierra Precipitation: 8-Station Index, May 17, 2017 

Oct 1 
	

Nov 1 Dec 1 	Jan 1 
	

Feb 1 Mar 1 	Apr 1 May 1 	Jun 1 	Jul 1 
	

Aug 1 Sep 1 Oct 1 
Water Year (October 1 - September 30) 

T
o

ta
l
 W
at

e
r  

Y
ea

r  
P

re
c

ip
it

at
io

n
  



90 

85 

80 

75 

70 

65 

‘="c  60 
0 

.2 55 

40 
-5, 
(T3  35 
a) 

0—  3 ra 

E 25 

20 

15 

10 

5 

0 

San Joaquin Precipitation: 5-Station Index, May 17, 2017 

T
o

ta
l W

at
e

r  
Y

e
a

r  
P

re
c

ip
it

at
io

n
  

CVT - Calaveras Big Trees 

HTH - Hetch Hetchy 

YSV - Yosemite Headquarters 

NFR - North Fork RS 

HNT - Huntington Lake 

Percent of Average for this Date: 187% 

1982-1983 (wettest) 77.4 
Current Daily Precip: 71.4 

1997-1998 65.2 

Average (1961-2010) 40.8 

2015-2016 Daily Precip 40.0 

2014-2015 Daily Precip 
19.0 
15.4 

1976-1977(2nd driest & driest thru Aug) 

Oct 1 
	

Nov 1 
	

Dec 1 
	

Jan 1 
	

Feb 1 	Mar 1 	Apr 1 	May 1 	Jun 1 
	

Jul 1 
	

Aug 1 
	

Sep 1 
	

Oct 1 
Water Year (October 1 - September 30) 



70 

65 

60 

55 

5 .c 0  

:=. 

0 45  - 
.4= 

• 5 40 - 

.7s: 35 

0 

-5, 30- 

0 
> 25- 

1(1 
3 

201 = 

15 

10 

5 

0 

Tulare Basin Precipitation: 6-Station Index, May 17, 2017 

T
o t

a
l
 W
at

er
  Y

e
ar

  P
re

ci
p

it
a t

io
n

  

Oct 1 Jan 1 Jul 1 Oct 1 Dec 1 Sep 1 Nov 1 Aug 1 Feb 1 	Mar 1 	Apr 1 	May 1 	Jun 1 
Water Year (October 1 - September 30) 

Percent of Average for this Date: 168% 

BAL - Balch PH 

SB - Isabella Dam 
1997-1998 

aily Precip:46.0 

GNF - Giant Forest 
ASM - Ash Mt. 1968-1969 (Wettest) 

Curr 

SGV - Springville. 
PSC - Pascoes 

Average (1961-2010) 

25.8 
2015-2016 Daily Precip 

2014-2015 Daily Precip 
13.5 

10.9 

1976-1977 Daily Precip (Driest) 

56.3 
54.2 

29.3 



250 
Central Percent of Average for this Date: 216% 

100•  

50. 

2015-2016 

1982-1983 (max) 

122 

Average 

0 15 mm 	

250 

200 

150 

100 

50 

0 

200 

150 

Percent of Average for this Date: 200% 

1982-1983 (max) 
North 

Percent of Average for this Date: 177% South 

1982-1983 (max) 

102 

Average 

California Snow Water Content, May 17, 2017, Percent of April 1 Average 

Dec 
	

Jan 
	

Feb 
	

Mar 
	

Apr 
	

May 
	

Jun 	 Jul 

250 

200 

150 

100 

50 

0 

tatewide Percent of April 1: 108% 
	

Statewide Percent of Average for Date: 201% 



Ending At Midnight - June 1, 2017

Graph Updated 06/02/2017 08:15 AM

LEGEND

Capacity
(TAF)

% of Capacity |% of Historical
Average

Historical

Average

Trinity Lake
93% | 108%

Lake Shasta
96% | 112%

Lake Oroville
69% | 82%

Folsom Lake
97% | 115%

New Melones Lake
87% | 137%

Don Pedro Reservoir
87% | 114%

Lake McClure
81% | 119%

San Luis Reservoir
94% | 119%

Millerton Lake
78% | 101%

Lake Perris
45% | 55%

Castaic Lake
96% | 106%

Pine Flat Reservoir
77% | 106%



8-B 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JUNE 6, 2017 

 
 
 
RE: FISCAL 2017/2018 OPERATING, GENERAL AND WASTEWATER 
 BUDGETS 
 
Attached for your review is a draft of the proposed Operating, General and 
Wastewater Fund Budgets for Fiscal Year 2017/2018.  Along with the draft budget 
is a listing of budget highlights.   
 
The Finance Committee has met, reviewed the budgets, and modifications have 
been made thereto.  
 
Staff is available to answer any questions the Board may have with regard to the 
budgets for the 2017/2018 Fiscal Year. 



8-D 

 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
   JUNE 6, 2017 

 
RE: 2380 E. SMOKEWOOD - FIRE HYDRANT AND SAMPLE 

STATION RELOCATION INVESTIGATION 
 
As requested by the Board during its May 16, 2017 Board Meeting, staff investigated 
the history of the fire hydrant and sample station located in front of the residence at 
2380 E. Smokewood Ave. As part of the investigation, staff performed the following 
tasks: 

 Damage and maintenance record review 
 Field investigation 

 
The Agency maintains damage invoices for ten years. Staff reviewed all damage 
invoices on file and found none for this hydrant or sample station. Records for 
damages that occur due to a hit and run are held for approximately two years. Staff 
reviewed these records and found none for this hydrant or sample station. Staff also 
reviewed maintenance reports and discovered that the last recorded maintenance for 
the hydrant took place in December 2015 (hydrant painted).  
 
On May 16, 2017 staff visited the site to evaluate the conditions of the facilities and 
surrounding properties. Then, on May 26, staff performed a site survey of the area, 
mapping the current location of the facilities, property line, and edge of street asphalt. 
The survey confirmed that the facilities are located within the street right-of-way.  
 
To relocate the facilities to the south (Proposed Relocation #1), staff estimates the 
cost to be $16,000 for labor and materials. The work will require abandoning the 
existing facilities, welding a new side outlet on the main for the hydrant, hot tapping 
the main, upgrading the hydrant head, installing a new service saddle for the sample 
station, installing new piping for both facilities, and installing new concrete around the 
hydrant head and sample station cover.  
 
Another option (Proposed Relocation #2) would be to utilize the existing hydrant outlet 
and sample station service saddle and install a 90 degree angle on the hydrant lateral 
and sample station piping, relocating the facilities to the north of their current position, 
but still in front of the 2380 E. Smokewood property. Staff estimates the cost for this 
option to be $5,000 for labor and materials. 
 
Based on the research and site evaluation of the facilities, we believe this relocation 
is operationally unwarranted and therefore financially prohibited. Staff recommends 
not relocating the facilities at the Agency’s expense. However, relocating the facilities 
at the customer’s expense is an acceptable option.    







200 ft
N

➤➤

N
© 2016 Google

© 2016 Google

© 2016 Google











































X:\Kim\Public Information (PI)\PI 2017\PI Activities 2017\05-17 OC Activities.doc 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
 

OUTREACH & CONSERVATION 
ACTIVITIES 

 
May 2017 

Activities: 
   

5/04/17   Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ on the heat wave and hydration. 
   

5/04/17  Ashley Metzger was interviewed on the Joey English radio show. 
   

5/05/17  Vicki Petek completed 1 turf buy back post-inspection. 
   

5/09/17-
5/11/17 

 Staff and Board of Directors attended ACWA conference in Monterey, California. 

   
5/11/17  Vicki Petek completed 1 turf buy back post-inspection. 

   
5/12/17  Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ about school/classroom program. 

   
5/13/17  DWA distributed materials to the Cathedral City Homebuyer Seminar. 

   
5/18/17  Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ  on earthquake preparedness. 

   
5/19/17  Vicki Petek completed 2 turf buy back post-inspections. 

   
5/25/17  Ashley Metzger participated in a Whitewater River safety demo and was interviewed by 

KESQ. 
   

5/25/17  Ashley Metzger was on a live segment with KESQ about pool water saving tips. 
   

5/26/17  Staff worked with CVWD on a groundwater management video. 
   

5/26/17  DWA provided the water trailer to Cielo Vista Charter School for their annual walk-a-
thon. 

   
5/29/17  DWA provided the water trailer to the Palm Springs Air Museum for their Memorial Day 

celebration. 
   

Public Information Releases/eBlasts:     
 

May 15, 2017 – Nextdoor – DWA customers saved 15% in April. 
 

May 22, 2017 – Media alert – Whitewater River safety 
 

Water Conservation Reviews: 
  

 

City of Cathedral City Auto Park Sunrise Oasis Condos #1 
Canyon Vista Sunrise Oasis Condos #2 
Diplomat Sunrise Racquet Club 
Mesquite Canyon Estates Sunrise Villas 
Sundance Condos Via Isla Condos 
  
Water Conservation Reviews are annual mailings sent to large water users.  The Reviews include a 5-year consumption report, 
facility map, and information brochures.  The purpose is to help customers save water by summarizing their consumption, and 
offering suggestions for reducing usage.  Occasionally, after viewing, the recipient may contact DWA for assistance in the form of a 
Mobile Lab Evaluation. 

9-B 
 



May 1, 2017 - May 31, 2017Audience Overview

Language Sessions % Sessions

1. en-us 3,986 94.61%

2. en-gb 68 1.61%

3. en-ca 34 0.81%

4. es-419 22 0.52%

5. (not set) 17 0.40%

6. es-us 10 0.24%

7. en 9 0.21%

8. ko-kr 8 0.19%

9. en-au 6 0.14%

10. zh-cn 6 0.14%

Overview

 Sessions

… May 8 May 15 May 22 May 29

150150150

300300300

Sessions

4,213
Users

3,248
Pageviews

9,859

Pages / Session

2.34
Avg. Session Duration

00:02:12
Bounce Rate

40.14%

% New Sessions

63.19%

New Visitor Returning Visitor

36.8%

63.2%

© 2017 Google

All Users
100.00% Sessions

DWA main site

All Web Site Data GO TO REPORT

https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?utm_source=pdfReportLink#report/defaultid/a90622633w134355996p138504838/?_u.date00=20170501&_u.date01=20170531/


 

     

Desert Water Agency  
Facebook Analytics 

May 2017 



 

 

 

    

 

 

 

 



 

Desert Water Agency  
Twitter Analytics 

 May 2017 
 

 

 

 


	060617 Board Agenda
	Item 2 051617 Board Minutes
	MINUTES
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 060617 GM Report
	Item 4A 053017 Exec Comm minutes
	Item 4B 053017 Conserv PA Comm minutes
	Item 4C 060117 Finance Comm minutes
	Item 6 Treasurers Report April 2017
	Item 7A 060617 Staff Rpt GW Assess WW
	Item 7B 060617 Staff Rpt GW Assess MC
	Item 7C 060617 Staff Rpt GW Assess GH
	Item 8A SWC_ MEMO TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MAY 18 2017 BOARD MEETING (DESERT)-c1
	Item 8B 060617 Budget Review 2017-2018 Staff Report
	Item 8D 060617 Smokewood Fire Hydrant Report
	Item 9A Media Info
	Item 9B 05-17 OC Activities
	05-17 OC Activities.pdf
	DESERT WATER AGENCY
	Canyon Vista





